Brian C. Padgett Nevada State Bar No. 7474 1672 Liege Drive Henderson, Nevada 89012 Telephone: (702) 497-3204

Email: Brian.Padgett@icloud.com

Appellant in Proper Person

Electronically Filed Nov 18 2021 05:43 p.m. Elizabeth A. Brown Clerk of Supreme Court

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN RE:	
DISCIPLINE OF) Case No. 81918
BRIAN C. PADGETT, ESQ.	
NEVADA BAR NO. 7474	
)
)

APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF

I. NRAP 26.1 DISCLOSURE

The undersigned certifies that the following are persons or entities as described in NRAP 26.1(a), and must be disclosed. These representations are made in order that the judges of this Court may evaluate possible disqualification or recusal.

IV. JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

A. Basis of Jurisdiction

This is an appeal from the Notice of Entry of Decision, filed August 10, 2021, (hereinafter "Decision") by Respondent State Bar of Nevada against Appellant Brian C. Padgett. This Court has jurisdiction over this appeal pursuant to Article 6, section 21 (1) of the Nevada Constitution and the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure (hereinafter "NRAP"), Rule 3D(b & c).

B. Timeliness of Appeal

Appellant Brian C. Padgett filed a Motion to Extend Time to File Opening Brief (First Request) on September 7, 2021 seeking a thirty (30) day extension of time – until October 11, 2021 - within which to file Appellant's Opening Brief.

That request was granted by the Court.

Appellant then filed a Motion to Extend Time to File Opening
Brief (Second Request) seeking a thirty (30) day extension of time to file the
Opening Brief until November 10, 2021 due to ongoing medical issues. This
request was granted by the Court.

Appellant filed a Motion to Extend Time to File Opening Brief (Third Request) seeking a seven (7) day extension of time to complete the Opening Brief and deliver it to the Court on or before November 17, 2021. This request is pending approval by the Court as of November 18, 2021.

On November 17, 2021, Appellant filed a Motion to Extend Time to File Opening Brief (Fourth Request) seeking a one (1) day extension of time to deal with technical issues regarding the Appendices and complete the Opening Brief and deliver it to the Court on or before November 18, 2021. This request is pending approval by the Court as of November 18, 2021.

Pending Court approval of the Motions to Extend Time, filing of the Opening Brief has been made within 98 days after service of the order. *See* NRAP 3D(d).

C. Appeal from Final Order of Judgment

This is an appeal from a Notice of Entry of Decision. *See* NRAP 3D(c)(1)(2).

V. ROUTING STATEMENT

Both the Constitution and NRAP 17(a)(3) require this appeal be heard by the Supreme Court. Nev. Const. Art. 6, Sec. 21(1).

VI. STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

 Whether the Respondent erred and substantially prejudiced Appellant by failing to extend peremptory challenges to exclude Panel Members in violation of his Due Process and Equal Protection rights.

- 2. Whether the Respondent erred and substantially prejudiced Appellant when it denied Appellant the opportunity to call his own witnesses and use his own exhibits for the disciplinary hearing.
- 3. Whether the Respondent erred and substantially prejudiced Appellant by wrongfully denying him the right to confront his accusers and cross-examine witnesses in person.
- 4. Whether the Respondent violated Appellant's Equal Protection Rights by settling the disciplinary case against Amy Sugden for a reprimand while refusing to negotiate a settlement with Appellant.

5.

VII. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from a disciplinary hearing held by the Respondent State
Bar of Nevada who arrived at their Entry of Decision in violation of Appellant's
Due Process and Equal Protection rights under the law.

VIII. STATEMENT OF FACTS

In the summer of 2019, Appellant was advised that two Bar Complaints had been filed against him by a former client and a former employee Appellant provided with pro bono legal aid (OBC19-0604 and OBC19-0798). Later that year, Appellant was made aware a third Bar Complaint was filed against him by another client

(OBC19-1111). Prior to the filing of these Complaints, Appellant had only had one Bar Complaint filed against him during the entire course of his 20 year legal career in Nevada – and he successfully defended against it before it went beyond the initial inquiry phase.

One case no. OBC19-0604, was filed by a client whose case was handled by attorney Amy Sugden who worked as an independent contractor for Appellant. The second case no. OBC19-0798 was filed by a former employee of Appellant's Nevada licensed marijuana company, Ian Ritchie. This Complaint was filed with the assistance of attorney Amy Sugden who previously represented Appellant and his law firm and worked with the Firm for nine (9) years. Both Ms. Sugden and Mr. Ritchie were terminated for cause by Appellant in March 2019 when it was found they were assisting outside investors in the fraudulent corporate takeover of Appellant's Nevada licensed marijuana company.

Finally, case no. OBC19-1111 was filed by a former client whose case was also primarily handled by Ms. Sugden in her capacity as an independent contractor working with Appellant's law firm.

Prior to and during his response to the State Bar investigation, Appellant learned that his law firm's server had been breached by Amy Sugden and approximately half of the Firm's archived emails and case documents were deleted from the server without Appellant's knowledge. Appellant then notified the State

Bar on October 11, 2019, February 24, 2020 and October 14, 2020 that several of those emails, PDF and Word documents needed to respond to the State Bar's investigations were removed from the law firm's server without authorization. *ROA Vol. X, pages 2273-2277.*

When Appellant's law firm server was breached again at the end of February 2020 the decision was made to move full time to Appellant's home office at 1672 Liege Drive, Henderson, Nevada 89012 and work from flash drives and computer hard drives.

As the Law Office made the move to Henderson from downtown Las Vegas, Appellant's secretary, Connie P. Little, mailed the Respondent a notice of change of address, temporarily changing the Law Firm address to Respondent's home office at 1672 Liege Drive, Henderson, Nevada 89012. *ROA Vol. III, pages 520-555*. For the rest of 2020 and 2021, the Law Firm's mail was received at Appellant's home office and this address along with new email address was also available to Respondent on the Clark County District Court Portal.

Despite the notice of change of the law firm's address to 1672 Liege Drive, Henderson, Nevada 89012, the State Bar continued to send all mail to Appellant's 611 S. 6th Street downtown law office address and to a home he had not owned in more than a year at 11274 Gammila Drive, Las Vegas, Nevada 89141. Even though these mailings were returned to sender, the State Bar continued to send mailings to

the same addresses. These mailings for case no. OBC19-1111 included the Complaint, First Designation of Panel Members, Notice of Intent to Take Default and Entry of Default, among others. This is confirmed by Respondent's July 10, 2020 Declaration of Service According to SCR 109(1) In Support of Entry of Default. *ROA Vol. I, pages 23-37.*

During that time of Covid-19 quarantine, Appellant lost an uncle, helped evacuate his parents from California and faced his own medical issues. Meanwhile, Respondent's case against Appellant continued toward the October 15, 2020 hearing date when Respondent reached out to Appellant's lawyer, Garrett Ogata and advised him of the hearing. Appellant then made contact with Respondent on October 14, 2020 and the Hearing was continued to allow Respondent to file an Amended Complaint and for Appellant to file an Answer to the Amended Complaint. *ROA Vol. X, pages 2273-2277*. Appellant was not given an opportunity to use peremptory challenges on a Designated Panel Members List. However, in an October 21, 2020 letter from Respondent, Appellant was required to provide proof that his uncle passed away and proof of his own illness at that time, among others.¹

Thereafter, in 2021, the Panel Chair ordered a Zoom disciplinary hearing despite the appeal of Appellant to face his accusers and cross-examine witnesses live

¹ This document was drafted by Respondent and should be part of the Record on Appeal but it has not been found in Respondent's Appendices.

and in-person. Appellant was also stripped of his ability to call his own witnesses and produce documents for the hearing. Further prejudicing Appellant, he could not access the Zoom hearing and had to participate telephonically and so could not see the proceedings, he could not effectively handle exhibits and while he struggled with access the hearing started and carried on without him. All of these actions effectively robbed Appellant of his Due Process and Equal Protection rights and left him unable to defend himself on the merits.

IX. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT:

- A. Nevada Courts have a long history of protecting the Due Process rights and Equal Protection rights of participants in civil actions.
 - The Respondent erred by failing to extend peremptory challenges to
 Appellant to exclude Panel Members in violation of his Due Process and
 Equal Protection rights.
 - 2. The Respondent erred when it denied Appellant the opportunity to call his own witnesses and use his own exhibits for the disciplinary hearing.
 - 3. The Respondent erred and substantially prejudiced Appellant by wrongfully denying him the right to confront his accusers and cross-examine witnesses in person at the hearing.

4. The Respondent violated Appellant's Equal Protection Rights and by settling the disciplinary case against Amy Sugden for a reprimand while refusing to negotiate a settlement with Appellant.

X. LEGAL ARGUMENT

On an appeal from an adverse Hearing Panel determination that was taken in violation of Appellant's Due Process and Equal Protection rights, this Court "may reserve such action or take any alternative action provided in this subsection." Nev. Const. art. 6, sec. 21(1). This Court "is not bound by the Panel's conclusions of law. *In re Varain*, 114 Nev. 1271, 1276, 969 P.2d 305, 309 (1998). Factual determinations are reviewed to determine "whether the evidence in the record as a whole provides clear and convincing support" for the Panel's findings." *Id*.

This Court must exercise its independent judgment to ensure the sanction provided by the Panel is appropriate based on the Panel's findings of facts and this Court's independent review of the law based on those facts. *Goldman v. Nevada Com'n on Judicial Discipline*, 108 Nev. 251, 267-68, 830 P.2d 107, 118.

A. NEVADA COURTS HAVE A LONG HISTORY OF PROTECTING THE DUE PROCESS RIGHTS AND EQUAL PROTECTION RIGHTS OF PARTICIPANTS IN CIVIL ACTIONS

Nevada courts have a history of protecting the Equal Protection and Due Process rights of participants in civil actions. Decisions denying a person within its jurisdiction equal protection of the laws and decisions made in absence of one party are not favored by the law. As stated by the Nevada Supreme Court in *Franklin v. Bartsas Realty, Inc.*, 95 Nev. 561, 598 P.2d 1147 (1979):

[It is] the basic policy of each case decided upon its merits. In the normal course of events, justice is best served by such a policy.
95 Nev. at 563 (Emphasis in original). *See also McNair v. Rivera*, 110 Nev. 463, 471, 874 P.2d 1240 (1994).

Nevada has long held to these precepts as essential rights for all parties and it is applicable here to protect the due process and equal protection rights of the Appellant by overturning the decision of the Hearing Panel and allow Appellant an opportunity to defend himself on the merits.

1. Peremptory Challenges to Exclude Panel Members Were Never Extended to Appellant In Violation of His Due Process and Equal Protection Rights

Pursuant to Rule 13 of the Disciplinary Rules of Procedure, Respondent was to be served with a Complaint and First Designation of Panel Members.

According to Rule 13(a) Respondent was also to be given five (5) peremptory challenges to be used to eliminate people listed on the First Designation of Panel Members list. These challenges were to be used for any reason or no reason at all to ensure that Appellant had an opportunity to have input in selecting a fair and

independent Panel Chair and Hearing Panel.

At the end of February 2020, Appellant mailed a Notice of Address Change to Respondent that notified it that Appellant's Law Office had moved to 1672 Liege Drive, Henderson Nevada 89012 and that all mail should be sent to that address. *ROA Vol. X, pages 2279-2280*.

Respondent's Complaint and First Designation of Panel Members was filed on May 13, 2020 but not served on Appellant. *ROA Vol. I, pages 1-12.* As a result, an Order Appointing Hearing Panel Chair was filed on July 8, 2020 without the input of Appellant. *ROA Vol. I, pages 47-49.*

According to Respondent's July 10, 2020 Declaration of Service According to SCR 109(1) In Support of Entry of Default, the Respondent did not serve the Complaint and Designation of Hearing Panel Members list on Appellant at his new 1672 Liege Drive law office address pursuant to his February 28, 2020 notice of change of address.² *ROA Vol. I, pages 23-37.* Respondent only attempted service of these documents at Plaintiff's former residence at 11274 Gammila Drive in Las Vegas, Nevada 89141 and his former law office address at 611 S. 6th Street in Las Vegas, Nevada 89101. *ROA Vol. I, pages 23-37.* Respondent's first attempted service on Appellant at his 1672 Liege Drive address was not until 9/29/2020,

10/1/2020 and 10/3/2020 while Appellant was in California.³

It was not until the end of September / beginning of October 2020 that Respondent contacted former counsel for Appellant, Garrett Ogata, with information on the Disciplinary Hearing in this matter that Appellant even knew to get in touch with Respondent. Appellant then sent a letter to Respondent – again advising them of his 1672 Liege Drive address - and that he had no notice of the upcoming disciplinary hearing. ROA Vol. X, pages 2273-2277. Thereafter, the hearing was stayed and the Panel Chair allowed Respondent to file an Amended Complaint and Appellant was then allowed to file an Answer. The Amended Complaint did not come with a First Designation of Hearing Panel Members and no mention was made to Appellant of any right to use five (5) peremptory challenges to eliminate any prospective Panel Members and shape the Hearing Panel. Both the Hearing Panel Chair and Formal Hearing Panel were appointed before Appellant accepted service of a formal Complaint in this matter in October 2020.

Appellant later learned he was never given an opportunity to use peremptory challenges on the Hearing Panel List through no fault of his own because he was never served with the Complaint until October 2020. Appellant brought this matter

³ A "Summary of Service" should be part of the Record on Appeal but it has not been found in Respondent's Appendices. It was previously designated by Respondent as SBN 00736 and SBN 00743.

before the Panel Chair at the Pre-Hearing Conference.⁴ At that time, Appellant was denied the right to use peremptory challenges by the Panel Chair who would only allow a challenge for cause within a less than 24 hour window.⁵

A challenge for cause is not the same as a peremptory challenge which would have allowed Appellant to exclude the Panel Chair for any reason or no reason at all. Appellant had reason to use a peremptory challenge to remove the Panel Chair as he practices in the field of eminent domain and is a direct competitor for these small amount of cases that arise annually in Nevada.

Appellant revisited his loss of peremptory challenges in his June 16, 2021 Motion to Set Aside Orders and Dismiss Case. ROA Vol. VI, pages 1204-1213. This Motion was also denied by the Panel Chair. ROA Vol. VI, pages 1224-1227.

Respondent's failure to offer the peremptory challenges from the outset is incurably prejudicial and a violation of Respondent's Due Process and Equal Protection Rights. For this reason Appellant asks that the Decision of the Hearing

⁴ The Panel Chair's rulings from that May 19, 2021 hearing have not been found in Respondent's Index or Appendices – only his Order regarding Appellant's Motion to Set Aside.

⁵ The Panel Chair ruled that Appellant would only be allowed to challenge Panel Members for cause within a window of less than 24 hours – along with filing Oppositions to other motions within this same time period. All this while Appellant had client filing deadlines due within that same period of time. The client matters took up the bulk of the time window and Appellant was unable to draft any responsive pleadings within the Panel Chair's time window so he sought an extension of time from the Panel Chair and was denied.

Panel be overturned and Appellant be allowed to defend himself on the merits of the case with all of the rights accorded other similarly situated members of the Nevada State Bar.

2. Appellant Was Substantially Prejudiced When Denied the Opportunity
to Call His Own Witnesses and Use His Own Exhibits In Violation of
His Due Process and Equal Protection Rights

Appellant provided Initial Disclosures to Respondent on March 9, 2021. Thereafter, pursuant to the Amended Scheduling Order, the parties were to file Motions on April 5, 2021, Oppositions by April 19, 2021 and Replies by April 26, 2021. Final Disclosures were scheduled for April 28, 2021. *ROA Vol. II, pages* 350-354.

Respondent filed a Motion to Compel regarding Appellant's Initial Disclosures prior to April 5, 2021. Before Appellant could begin to prepare an Opposition, the Panel Chair found in favor of Respondent and stripped Appellant of his right to produce witnesses and documents on April 15, 2021 – four full days before the April 19, 2021 date scheduled for Appellant to prepare an Opposition. *ROA Vol. II, pages 367-373*.

As a result of this punitive ruling, Appellant could not prepare Final

Disclosures or a Trial Brief as he was left with only the use of documents disclosed by Respondent.

Appellant then filed an NRCP 60 Motion to Set Aside the ruling. *ROA Vol. II, pages 431-437.* This Motion was not heard until May 19, 2021 at the Pre-Hearing Conference. At that time, the Panel Chair ruled that the Motion to Set Aside would be granted. However, rather than grant Appellant the four days he had left to prepare and file an Opposition under the Amended Scheduling Order, the Panel Chair ordered Appellant would have less than 24 hours to file an Opposition to Respondent's original Motion to Compel along with several other motions.⁶

That same day, Appellant had clients who relied on him to prepare Justice

Court appeals for District Court to keep them in their homes pursuant to the CDC

Moratorium. Appellant took care of the clients with deadlines first and then, at

⁶ The Panel Chair's May 19, 2021 Order Regarding Defendant's Rule 60(b) Motion To Set Aside Order Granting State's Motion to Compel has not been found in Respondent's Index or Appendices.

11:39am on Thursday May 20, 2021 he asked for an extension of the Panel Chair's filing deadline and was denied. As a result, the Panel Chair then filed an Order granting the Respondent's Motion to Compel and Appellant was unable to call his own witnesses or use his own documents to defend himself at the hearing. *ROA Vol. V, pages 1164-1172*.

The ruling of less than 24 hours to prepare several Motions and subsequent refusal to grant an extension of time for same was arbitrary and capricious and violated Appellant's Due Process rights giving him no real opportunity to defend himself in such a short time window with other client obligations to satisfy during that same time period. Furthermore, the ruling denied Appellant Equal Protection under the laws as he was denied the full time set forth in the Amended Scheduling Order to draft his Opposition unlike other similarly situated members of the Nevada State Bar who have been the subject of disciplinary proceedings and have had the full time set forth in the Scheduling Order to file responsive pleadings. For this reason, Appellant asks that the Decision of the Hearing Panel be overturned and Appellant be allowed to defend himself on the merits of the case

with all of the rights accorded other similarly situated members of the Nevada State Bar.

3. Respondent Wrongfully Denied Appellant the Right to Confront His Accusers and Cross-Examine Witnesses In Person

Disciplinary Rules of Procedure, Rule 32, states that "the venue shall be the county in which the respondent resides or maintains his or her principal place of business. Hearings will be conducted in the Reno or Las Vegas office of the State Bar unless otherwise ordered by the hearing panel chair upon showing of good cause."

In the February 19, 2021 Amended Scheduling Order, paragraph 8 notes that the hearing "will take place either via Zoom or in person, pursuant to public health recommendations". *ROA Vol. II, pages 350-354*.

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