# IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN THE MATTER OF DISCIPLINE OF BRIAN C. PADGETT BAR NO. 7474

Case No. 83347

Electronically Filed Jan 20 2022 4:53 p.m. Elizabeth A. Brown Clerk of Supreme Court

#### **RESPONDENT'S ANSWERING BRIEF**

BRIAN C. PADGETT Nevada Bar No. 7474 1672 Liege Drive Henderson, Nevada 89012 (702) 497-3204 DANIEL M. HOOGE Bar Counsel Nevada Bar No. 10620 GERARD GOSIOCO Assistant Bar Counsel Nevada Bar No. 14371 State Bar of Nevada Office of Bar Counsel 3100 West Charleston Boulevard Suite 100 Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 (702) 382-2200

Appellant Proceeding Pro Se

Attorneys for Respondent

# **

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

## **SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT**

Padgett's due process and/or equal protection rights were not violated. Any alleged prejudice he claims to have suffered was self-induced. Further, the State Bar's negotiations with another attorney have no relevance to Padgett's underlying disciplinary matter. Therefore, this Court should adopt the Northern Nevada Disciplinary Board's recommendation to suspend Padgett from the practice of law for five (5) years consecutive to his five (5) year suspension in Docket No. 81918.

## **ARGUMENT**

Throughout the pendency of the underlying matter, Padgett has made a mockery of, and demonstrated a blatant disregard, for the Rules of Professional Conduct as well as the disciplinary process. The arguments Padgett makes are nonsensical as they are either belied by the record or irrelevant.

## I. PADGETT HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO EXERCISE PEREMPTORY CHALLENGES BUT FAILED TO DO SO

Padgett alleges that "Respondent's failure to offer the peremptory challenges from the outset is incurably prejudicial and a violation of Respondent's [*sic*] Due Process and Equal Protection Rights." Appellant's Opening Brief ("AOB") 17. However, Padgett's argument fails for several reasons. First, Padgett waived his right to exercise his peremptory challenges. DRP 13(a) states:

**Prior to the filing of a response to the Complaint**, bar counsel and Respondent may exercise five (5) peremptory challenges each to the people listed on the Designation of Hearing Panel Members. Peremptory challenges shall be delivered to the Office of Bar Counsel. If a Notice of Intent to Proceed on a Default Basis is filed and served prior to the exercise of any party's peremptory challenges, then that party has waived the opportunity to exercise any peremptory challenges.

(emphasis added). In order to properly exercise his right to peremptory challenges, Padgett should have (1) delivered his peremptory challenges to the Office of Bar Counsel (2) before a Notice of Intent to Proceed on a Default Basis was filed and served.

After the October 15, 2020, Formal Hearing was continued, the State Bar filed an Amended Complaint on October 27, 2020. ROA 87-99. Respondent failed to timely file a verified response or answer to the Amended Complaint. As a result, the State Bar filed a second Notice of Intent to Proceed on a Default Basis on November 17, 2020. ROA 138-141. Accordingly, Padgett waived the opportunity to exercise any peremptory challenges pursuant to DRP 13(a). Even assuming a Notice of Intent to Proceed on a Default Basis was never filed, Padgett failed to deliver any peremptory challenges to the Office of Bar Counsel prior to filing his Verified Response on February 17, 2021. ROA 360-362. Second, Padgett's allegation that he was never extended, or denied, peremptory challenges and only limited to challenges for cause is belied by the record. The Panel Chair made it clear that Padgett "could file any motion on any grounds to challenge any panel member." ROA 1405. Directing his attention to Padgett, the Panel Chair told him the following:

> I invited you, if you had grounds to pursue either a peremptory challenge or a challenge for cause, I invited you to file those, and we did have a quick turnaround on that motion due to the looming hearing. You elected not to file any of the motions that we discussed at the pretrial hearing and now have filed this motion today, which appears to rehash several prior motions I've already ruled upon.

ROA 1406. Padgett had every opportunity to exercise both peremptory challenges and challenges for cause but failed to exercise the same.

Lastly, the timing in which Padgett raises this is questionable. The Order Appointing Formal Hearing Panel Chair and Hearing Panel were filed on July 8, 2020, and August 4, 2020, respectively. ROA 20-22, 47-49. Even assuming Padgett did not receive the aforementioned orders, he has known the identities of the Panel members since – at the very least – January 13, 2021, when he emailed them asking for a stay in the proceedings. ROA 987-90.

Padgett admits that he first mentions his alleged lack of peremptory challenges to the Panel Chair at the PHC. AOB 16-17. Moreover, for the first time on appeal, Padgett claims that he "had reason to use a peremptory challenge to remove the Panel Chair as he practices in the field of eminent domain and is a direct competitor for these small amount of cases that arise annually in Nevada." AOB 17; *see* NRAP 10.

Padgett was never denied the opportunity to exercise peremptory challenges or challenges for cause. Therefore, Padgett's argument fails.

# II. PADGETT'S INABILITY TO CALL WITNESSES OR INTRODUCE EXHIBITS IS BASED ON HIS BLATANT DISREGARD OF THE DISCIPLINARY RULES OF PROCEDURE

Padgett claims that he was denied the opportunity to call his own witnesses and use his own exhibits in violation of his Due Process and Equal Protection rights. AOB 18-21. However, Padgett's argument is belied by the record. Padgett was never denied the opportunity to call his own witnesses or use his own exhibits. In fact, Padgett was given numerous opportunities to call his own witnesses and introduce his own exhibits by disclosing the same to the State Bar. Padgett failed to do so. It was because of Padgett's failures to comply with the DRP and NRCP that led to his preclusion of calling witnesses other than himself and not introducing his own exhibits.

Padgett's assertion that "[he] provided Initial Disclosures to [the State Bar] on March 9, 2021" is also belied by the record. AOB 18. Padgett did not provide his Initial Disclosure to the State Bar on March 9, 2021. Rather, Padgett requested an extension one minute prior to the deadline to file his Initial Disclosure. ROA 71820. When Padgett served the State Bar with his Initial Disclosure on March 11,

2021, it was problematic. ROA 1026-29.

In his Initial Disclosure, the only named witness was Padgett himself; he failed to produce the identities of any other witnesses. *Id.* Additionally, Padgett vaguely referenced several categories of documents but did not disclose any actual documents to the State Bar. *Id.* NRCP 37(c)(1) states:

If a party fails to provide information or identify a witness as required by Rule 16.1(a)(1), 16.2(d) or (e), 16.205(d) or (e), or 26(e), the party is not allowed to use that information or witness to supply evidence on a motion, at a hearing, or at a trial, unless the failure was substantially justified or is harmless. In addition to or instead of this sanction, the court, on motion and after giving an opportunity to be heard:

(A) may order payment of the reasonable expenses, including attorney fees, caused by the failure;(B) may inform the jury of the party's failure; and(C) may impose other appropriate sanctions, including any of the orders listed in Rule 37(b)(1).

ABC Gosioco made several unsuccessful attempts to rectify Padgett's incomplete disclosures. *See* ROA 1033-34. When Padgett failed to rectify the issues in his Initial Disclosure, the State Bar filed a Motion to Compel Production on March 25, 2021. *Id.* at 1036-43; *see* NRCP 37(a)(3)(A).

DRP 15(b) states that "[a]ll responses to motions filed pursuant to this Rule must be filed and served ten (10) judicial days after the motion is filed." Padgett's opposition was due on or before April 8, 2021, and because no opposition had been filed, the Panel Chair granted the State Bar's motion on April 15, 2021. ROA 367-73. In his Order, the Panel Chair gave Padgett the opportunity to use certain exhibits if he disclosed the same to the State Bar by April 19, 2021, at 5:00 p.m. PST. *Id.* Padgett did not disclose anything to the State Bar by this deadline.

Even more problematic is the fact that Padgett failed to serve a Final Disclosure to the State Bar "[a]t or before April 28, 2021 by 5:00 p.m." *See* ROA 350-54. He was never precluded from preparing his Final Disclosure or a Trial Brief; he simply chose not to prepare the same. *Contra* AOB 19. Instead, on April 28, 2021, Padgett filed a Rule 60(b) Motion to Set Aside Order Granting State's Motion to Compel where he argued that he had until April 19, 2021, to file an opposition to the State Bar's Motion to Compel. ROA 431-37.

Although Padgett's belief that he had until April 19, 2021, to file his opposition is absurd, the Panel Chair graciously gave Padgett yet another opportunity to oppose the State Bar's motion when he granted Padgett's Motion to Set Aside. ROA 1153-63. Nonetheless, Padgett still failed to file his opposition to the State Bar's Motion to Compel. As such, the Panel Chair re-granted the State Bar's Motion to Compel on May 24, 2021.

Based on Padgett's failure to comply with DRP 17, NRCP 16.1, and the Amended Scheduling Order, the Panel Chair's ruling that Padgett may not call any witnesses other than himself was appropriate. Therefore, Padgett's argument fails.

23

## III. ANY ALLEGED PREJUDICE PADGETT SUFFERED WAS SELF-INDUCED

Padgett alleges that he was wrongfully denied of his right to confront his accusers and cross examine witnesses in person. AOB 21-24. However, Padgett chose not to participate.

The Amended Scheduling Order stated that "[Padgett] will submit his evaluation of the conditions relevant to holding the hearing remotely versus holding a live hearing by April 21, 2021; the State Bar will have an opportunity to respond by April 28, 2021 when a final decision will be made by the Panel Chair." ROA 350-54. After reviewing both Padgett's and the State Bar's arguments, the Panel Chair ruled that the underlying Formal Hearing would be conducted virtually via Zoom. *See* ROA 1435-36. When the Panel Chair ruled against Padgett, Padgett engaged in further obstruction. Padgett was unable to examine the State Bar's witnesses because he refused to participate in good faith.

On May 28, 2021, Padgett's rescheduled Formal Hearing was scheduled to begin at 9:00 a.m. PST. *See* ROA 1258. However, the Panel Chair did not go on the record until approximately 9:38 a.m. so that he could "give Mr. Padgett a few more minutes." ROA at 1258-60. At approximately 9:43 a.m., Laura Peters (hereinafter "Ms. Peters"), a paralegal with the State Bar, notified the Panel Chair that Mr. Padgett contacted her as he was having problems with Zoom. ROA 1261. Accordingly, the Panel Chair wanted to wait a few minutes to see if Padgett would join the Zoom meeting. ROA 1261-65. At approximately 9:53 a.m., after not receiving any other correspondence from Padgett, the Panel Chair allowed ABC Gosioco to give his opening statement. ROA 1265-66. After ABC Gosioco's opening statement concluded at approximately 9:58 a.m., Padgett still was not in attendance. ROA 1269. As such, the Panel Chair allowed the State Bar to call its first witness. *Id*.

Padgett did not join the Zoom meeting until approximately 10:23 a.m. PST. *See* ROA 1282-83, 1421. Padgett complained about his inability to log in to the Zoom meeting or see any witnesses or exhibits. ROA 1284. Accordingly, the Panel Chair asked ABC Gosioco to re-send Padgett any and all exhibits ABC Gosioco intended to reference so that Padgett could follow along. ROA 1298. Padgett could follow along. *ROA* 1298. Padgett follow along. *Id*.

Padgett admitted to having a laptop with a camera and an iPhone with a camera. ROA 1302. The Panel Chair recommended that Padgett log onto Zoom using one of those devices so that his alleged issue of not being able to see would be resolved. ROA 1303. Padgett then requested to be called as a witness after lunch so that he could get Zoom to work. ROA 1303-04. The Panel Chair gave Padgett three (3) minutes to attempt to log onto Zoom using his iPhone and to call back in by 11:21 a.m. PST if he was unsuccessful. ROA 1306. Padgett did not return by

25

the agreed upon time. Accordingly, the Panel Chair sent Mr. Padgett two (2) follow up emails. ROA 1307. Padgett did not call back in until approximately 11:31 a.m. PST. *See id.* This was not the only time Padgett did not return to the Zoom meeting timely.

At approximately 12:43 p.m. PST, the Panel Chair suggested to take a recess for lunch and stated that the Formal Hearing would resume "at 1:45 sharp." ROA 1351. Padgett did not return to the Zoom meeting until approximately 2:16 p.m. PST. ROA 1368. The Parties were unable to get through all the witnesses, and as such, the Formal Hearing was continued to June 16, 2021. *See* ROA 1387-89, 1394-99; *see also* ROA 1402-1507.

At approximately 8:37 a.m. PST on June 16, 2021, Padgett filed a Motion to Set Aside Orders and Dismiss Case. ROA 1204-11; *see* ROA 1405-06. In his motion, Padgett argued that the Formal Hearing should be held in-person due to Governor Sisolak's June 1, 2021, directive, as well as the June 11, 2021, Las Vegas Justice Court directive. ROA 1206. Padgett admitted that he learned about the Las Vegas Justice Court ruling "on the evening of June 14, 2021," but he waited to file his motion twenty-three (23) minutes before his Formal Hearing resumed. AOB 24; *see* ROA 1405-06. The Panel Chair disagreed with Padgett's reasoning for holding an in-person hearing and denied Padgett's motion. ROA 1224-26, 1419-22. Padgett also omits the fact that he failed to return to the Zoom meeting after his motion was denied. After his motion was denied, ABC Gosioco suggested to Padgett that he could still use the Zoom link sent to him and see our faces and exhibits to alleviate some of his alleged concern of not being able to see the same. ROA 1437-39. Padgett stated that he would try to log on but failed to ever return. ROA 1439; *see* ROA 1441, 1445-46, 1460-63, 1471, 1473, 1483, 1498. The Panel Chair sent Padgett an email at approximately 10:13 a.m. PST asking whether he would return but received no response. ROA 1483

Based on his conduct discussed *supra*, neither the State Bar nor the Panel caused any harm to Padgett through alleged prejudice; it was self-induced. Therefore, Padgett's argument fails.

## IV. THE STATE BAR'S NEGOTIATION WITH AMY SUGDEN IS NOT RELEVANT TO PADGETT'S DISCIPLINARY CASE

Padgett alleges that his Equal Protection and Due Process rights were violated because he "was not offered nor given any opportunity to negotiate a settlement." AOB 27. Padgett's argument is nonsensical and without merit.

Padgett begins by arguing that Ms. Sugden should not have been listed as a witness because she "was subject to attorney-client privilege," and then protests the fact that "the Panel Chair approved [the State Bar]'s Final Disclosures which included Ms. Sugden as a witness for [the State Bar] despite the conflict of interest her testimony provided." AOB 26. Padgett's assertion is belied by the record. First,

Ms. Sugden never acted as counsel of record for Padgett or the LOBCP, and therefore, there is no conflict of interest based on an alleged attorney-client privilege. ROA 430, 1450. Second, even assuming there was a conflict of interest, Padgett would not have suffered any prejudice as the Panel Chair ruled that Ms. Sugden "should not testify to any attorney-client privilege in any case(s) where she represented either Brian C. Padgett and/or the Law Offices of Brian C. Padgett." ROA 1196. The Panel Chair also reiterated his ruling during the Formal Hearing. ROA 1426.

Padgett concludes his argument by asserting that "neither the Panel Chair or [*sic*] Associate [*sic*] Bar Counsel Gosioco disclosed that [the State Bar] had negotiated and settled the matter related to this case with Ms. Sugden." AOB 26. Padgett fails to cite to any legal authority to support his position that the State Bar is required to disclose the negotiations of another attorney's disciplinary matter. Further, Ms. Sugden's Public Reprimand was, and still is, publicly available information as the Panel Chair pointed out. ROA 1424-26. The State Bar did not offer Ms. Sugden any benefit to testify against Padgett.

Lastly, Padgett states that "Associate [*sic*] Bar Counsel Gosioco refused to negotiate and offer similar terms to [Padgett] during the course of the disciplinary proceedings." AOB 26. Padgett argues that not being offered or given "any opportunity to negotiate a settlement in this case [is] in direct violation of his Equal

Protection and Due Process rights." Again, Padgett fails to cite to any legal authority to support his position that he is entitled to receiving a settlement offer. Therefore, Padgett's argument fails.

## **CONCLUSION**

Based upon the foregoing, the State Bar respectfully requests that this Court AFFIRM the Northern Nevada Disciplinary Board's recommendation to suspend Padgett from the practice of law for five (5) years, to run consecutive to the five (5) year suspension he received in Docket No. 81918, require Padgett to retake the Nevada Bar Exam and MPRE, and repay the fees of his former clients (approximately \$161,000.00) by June 16, 2026, with interest at the statutory rate.